
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Transportation & Environment 

Council Committee  

Agenda 

August 17, 2016 

Auburn Hall – Community Room 
                                    

5:30 P.M.   

 
                                                                             

I. Call to Order and Introductions 

II. Minutes of July 20, 2016 meeting 

III. Items 

a. LA Bicycle Pedestrian Committee 

b. Great Falls TV Committee By-Laws 

IV. Committee recommendations  

V. Staff updates 

a. Construction Projects 

VI. Public Comment 

VII. Next meeting agenda setting, September 21, 2016 

 

 



City of Auburn 

Transportation & Environment 

July 20, 2016 

5:30 PM 

 Community Room 

 

 

 Call to Order and Introductions: 
 Councilor Leroy Walker; Councilor Ernestine Gilbert; Dan Goyette, Director of Public 

Services; Councilor David Young; 

 

 Minutes:  
Motion was made by Councilor Walker seconded by Councilor Gilbert, accepting the 

minutes of the May 18, 2016 Transportation & Environment meeting. Passage 3-0 

 

 Rainbow Crosswalk: 
Mr. Goyette explained the request made by Mayor Labonte and reviewed the article on 

Bangor.  Concern was expressed by the group about causing a distraction to drivers and a 

motion was made to have the entire Council weigh in on whether or not these types of 

pavement markings should be made.  Passage 3-0 

 

 Staff updates: 
a. Construction Projects – an update was given on the ongoing City construction 

projects. 

b. Recreation Department – Sabrina Best, Recreation Director, gave an overview 

on the ongoing Recreation Department programs.   

c. Ingersoll Turf Facility – Jeremy Gatcomb, General Manager, gave an overview 

of current and future use plans. 

 

 Public Comment 
a. Larry Pelletier spoke about the need for cameras throughout the City to deter 

vandalism and illegal activity. 

 

 Next Meeting agenda setting, August 17, 2016 
a. Update on Norway Savings Bank Arena 

b. Bike/Pedestrian Committee Update 

 

 Adjournment 
a. End Session 6:20 PM 



 

Page 1 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

 
BY-LAWS 
OF THE 

AUBURN-LEWISTON ADVISORY CABLE TV COMMITTEE 
 

I.   MISSION, PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
 
A.  Mission 
 
The cities of Auburn and Lewiston, acknowledging a need and desire for the 
establishment of local public access, educational and government (PEG) channels, 
have established the Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee (sometimes 
referred to as “Committee”) whose primary mission is to provide policy oversight for the 
broadcasting of a variety of PEG programming utilizing both on site and community assets to 
operate Great Falls TV (sometimes referred to as “GFTV”) as an open and accessible resource to 
all concerned. 
 
B.  Purpose and Scope 
 

1) To oversee the operation and investment of available revenues in facilities, operations and 
equipment that provide GFTV viewers quality and dependable local cable television and 
internet streaming/archiving services; 
 

2) To oversee the production and programming that is generated by both GFTV and other 
sources from within and outside of our community; 
 

3) Advising the City Councils and the public on matters relating to the administration of 
GFTV policies and programming; 
 

4) Encouraging other PEG access stations utilizing GFTV services to reflect its policies and 
values relative to content broadcasted on GFTV; 
 

5) Relaying pertinent operations, programming and policy information to the City Councils 
and the public on a timely basis; 
 

6) Acting on such matters as the City Councils or the Auburn City Manager/Lewiston City 
Administrator deem appropriate provided that such matters relate to GFTV 
services/operations; 
 

7) Advocate for quality local programming within the context of available resources and 
revenues; 
 

8) Advocate for the needs of GFTV viewers; 
 

9) Raise the public awareness of the Committee, inform the community of the Committee’s 
role, and solicit public opinion and needs. 



 

Page 2 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

 
II.    MEETINGS OF MEMBERS 

A.  Monthly Meeting of Members 

Unless otherwise posted, the regular Monthly Meeting of the Committee shall be held at 
Auburn Hall on the first Thursday of each month, at 6:00 P.M. for transacting business 
as may properly come before the Committee.  The time and place of the Monthly Meeting and 
items to be acted upon/discussed shall be posted in the agenda and submitted to the City Clerks in 
both cities for public posting no later than three (3) business days prior. 
 
B.  Special Meetings of Members 
 
Special Meetings of the Committee shall be called by the Chair or upon the request of a 
majority of the Committee Members (sometimes referred to as “Members”). Notice for any 
Special Meeting must include the nature of the business to be acted upon/discussed by the 
Committee and must be submitted for public posting to the City Clerks in both cities no later than 
twenty-four hours prior to the meeting. 
 
C.  Members Eligible to Vote 
 
Those persons who have been formally appointed as Members shall be eligible to vote at  
all meetings in one of the following manners: 

1) In person.  
2) By telephone or videoconference 

 

D.  Quorum of Members 
 
An official meeting shall require a quorum  consisting of no less than four (4) Members present at 
the meeting or three (3) Members present and no more than one (1) by telephone or 
videoconference.  If no quorum is present, a majority of those present may adjourn  and  
reschedule the meeting  in accordance with the meeting notice provisions within these by-laws. 
 
For purposes of voting, no less than four (4) members shall be present but a quorum of five (5) 
members (with no more than one Member by telephone or videoconference) shall be required 
(see Article III.C). 

 
E.  Meetings of Members Open to Public 

 
1) All meetings of the Committee shall be open to the public and shall be conducted in 

accordance with those public and confidential provisions outlined in Maine law. 
 

2) Members of the public shall be welcomed as guests at any Regular or Special meeting of 
the Committee. 
 

3) Members of the public may present written requests for information to any Committee 
Member at any time; a period of time during each Regular Meeting shall be made available 
for questions or comments from guests. 



 

Page 3 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

 
4) Guests shall have no vote on Committee matters but may be invited to participate in 

discussion of such matters. 
 

5) Guest policies at Special Meetings shall be at the discretion of the Chair. 
 

III.    MEMBERS  

A.  Tenure and Qualifications of Members 

 

Four (4) Members from Auburn and four (4) Members from Lewiston shall be appointed in 
accordance with these By-Laws and the terms outlined in Auburn-Lewiston Local Cable TV 
Operations Interlocal Agreement (sometimes referred to as “Agreement”) but all committee 
selection/appointment ordinances and policies for the City of Auburn shall take precedence:  
 

1) One (1) City Councilor or Mayor from each city may be appointed to serve two (2) year 
terms (to correspond with Mayor/City Council elections), and may be reappointed to an 
unlimited number of consecutive terms; and 

2) with the exception of the staff position who shall serve at the pleasure of the Lewiston City 
Administrator, the inaugural terms of the remaining five Committee Members shall be 
staggered as a one (1), two (2) and three (3) year term of service based on a blind draw 
conducted by the Chair of the Committee at the first inaugural meeting of the Committee. 
Terms for all five Members thereafter shall be two year terms; and 

3) in Auburn, three (3) Committee Members shall be appointed by and serve no more than 
three (3) two (2) year terms; and  

4) in Lewiston with the noted exception of the City Administrator staff position,  the Mayor 
shall nominate two  Members who shall be appointed by the City Council and serve no 
more than three (3) two (2) year terms. 

 
In the event that a Member resigns, is removed for cause, dies or fails to be re-appointed, a new 
Member may be nominated by the Committee and submitted for approval by the be applicable 
City Council to fill the vacancy. All appointments shall fill the remaining term of the vacated 
position or shall fill the vacancy in accordance with those provisions, ordinances or policies 
governing committee appointments for the applicable municipality. 
 
All Members must be at least 18 years of age at the time of their appointment to serve as a 
Member.   

 
B.  Election and Appointment of Officers 

 
At the inaugural meeting of the Committee, the Chair, Vice-Chair, and Secretary shall be 
chosen by a majority vote of the Committee with all future elections being conducted at the 
Regular Meeting scheduled the month prior to the expiration of terms for all Officers. 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

C.  Voting Requirements and Email Communications 
 
All legislative actions of the Auburn-Lewiston Cable TV Committee will require no less than 
five (5) affirmative votes.  All voting actions must take place in accordance with the 
attendance and quorum requirements stated in Article II.D. of these by-laws. 
 
No email voting is authorized but email may be used to communicate meeting notices, assess 
quorum availabilities, and other pertinent business information to Committee Members. 
 
When a matter before the Committee only affects cable customers in one city, no less than 
three (3) Members representing the city involved must vote in the affirmative for passage. 

 
D.  Member Eligibility - Removal of Members - Vacancies 

 
Residency shall be a requirement for all Members in both municipalities. Any action or cause 
resulting in a change of Member residency shall result in immediate ineligibility for Committee 
participation and immediate termination of Member’s appointment to the Committee. 
 
In the absence of submitting an excused absence request to the Chair, any Member who does 
not attend three (3) consecutive Committee meetings shall be deemed to have resigned 
voluntarily from the Committee, effective at the close of the third unattended meeting, unless 
the Committee, at the request of the Member and for good cause, shall have taken action to 
retain the Member. 
 
Any Member may be removed with or without cause at any time by the affirmative vote of 
two-thirds of the City Council which appointed the Member or by a two-thirds vote of the 
Committee which must also be affirmed by a two-thirds vote of the applicable City Council.  A 
new Member may be nominated by the Committee and submitted for approval to the  applicable 
municipality to fill the vacancy. All such appointments shall fill the remaining term of the 
vacated position or shall fill the vacancy in accordance with those provisions, ordinances or 
policies governing committee appointments for the applicable municipality. 
. 
In the event that a Member resigns, is removed for cause, or dies, a new Member may be 
nominated by the Committee and submitted for approval by the  applicable municipality to fill the 
vacancy. All such appointments shall fill the remaining term of the vacated position or shall fill 
the vacancy in accordance with those provisions, ordinances or policies governing committee 
appointments for the applicable municipality. 
 
I n the event of the removal or resignation of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall become the interim 
Chair until the next Monthly Meeting at which time a person shall be elected to serve for the 
balance of the term of the removed Chair. 
 
E.  Roberts Rules 
 
Roberts Rules of Order, Revised, shall govern the proceedings of all Committee meetings and its 
constituent parts except as provided in these By-Laws. 
 



 

Page 5 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

IV.    OFFICERS 
 

A.  Officers 

The Officers of the Committee (sometimes herein “Officers”) shall consist of a Chair, Vice-
Chair, and Secretary.  No person may concurrently hold more than one office.   
 
B.  Term, Removal, Vacancy of Officers 
 
The Officers shall be elected at the Inaugural Meeting of the Committee and shall hold office 
for one (1) year or until a successor is elected.  No Officer may serve more than three 
consecutive terms in the same office.  Any Officer may be removed by vote of the Committee 
with or without cause if it determines in its discretion that the best interests of the Committee 
would be served thereby. 
 
A vacancy shall be filled by a vote of the Committee for the unexpired portion of the term. 
 
C.  Duties and Authority of the Chair 
 
The Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Committee.  Subject to the control of the 
Committee, the Chair shall be responsible for supervising and directing the affairs of the 
Committee and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Committee are carried into effect.  
The Chair or a majority vote of the Committee may appoint Members and other public 
individuals to ad hoc committees to work on a variety of initiatives for the full Committee to 
consider.  All ad hoc committee meetings shall be posted in accordance with the meeting notice 
and participation requirements listed in Section II of these By-Laws.  The Chair or Committee 
authorizing the ad hoc committee may terminate the ad hoc committee at any time but must post 
the proposed action on the agenda of any Regular Meeting. 
 
D.  Duties and Authority of the Vice-Chair 
 
The Vice-Chair shall perform such duties as shall from time to time be prescribed by the 
Committee or delegated by the Chair.   In the absence of the Chair, the Vice- Chair shall act 
in his/her stead unless otherwise prescribed by the Committee. 
 
E.  Duties and Authority of Secretary 
 

The Secretary shall be responsible for:  keeping the minutes of the proceedings of Members in 
one or more books provided for that purpose; seeing that all notices are duly given in 
accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law; custody of the 
Committee records; keeping a register of the address of each Member and updating the same 
regularly; and in general performing all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other 
duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the Chair or by the Committee. 
 

 
 
 
 



 

Page 6 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

V.    REPORTS AND BUDGETS 
 

A.  Annual Report 
 
The Committee shall issue an Annual Report which shall be distributed to Members and the 
public no later than 5 months following the end of  the fiscal  year.  The Annual 
Report shall include, among other things, information as to: 

 
1) Revenues and expenditures and a comparison of those amounts to 

the amounts budgeted; 
2) The number of people trained in the use of the Committee’s equipment; 
3) The nature and amount of programming produced by the Committee; 
4) The nature and amount of programming produced in cooperation or conjunction with 

the Committee; 
5) The number of persons and/or organizations utilizing the community access  

programming facilities; 
6) Actions taken to encourage broad-based utilization of the community access  

programming facilities; 
7) Actions taken to coordinate the Committee’s programs and activities with those of  

other public   and   private   organizations   involved   in   the   production   of   
community-based cable TV programming in Maine; 

8) Complaints received about access operations, and actions taken by the Committee to 
resolve such complaints; 

9) Grants/donations awarded to the Committee for programming; 
10) The work of each or any sub-committee appointed by the Chair. 

 
B.  Annual Budget 

 
Working through the department head, the station manager and the Committee shall prepare a 
proposed budget for each new fiscal year which shall be made available to the Lewiston City 
Administrator and the Auburn City Manager no later than January 31st of each year. 

 
VI.    AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 

 
These  By-laws  may  be  amended  only  in  the  following  manner:    an  amendment  may  be 
introduced on the agenda of any Regular Monthly Meeting of the Committee. All by-law 
amendments receiving an affirmative vote from the Committee will be submitted to the City 
Clerks of both cities for action by the City Councils. 
 
Once notice has been received by the City Clerks, the Committee approved By-Law 
amendment must be posted in the agenda no later than sixty (60) days within receipt of the 
written Committee notice.  The City Councils shall be required to vote on any By-Law 
amendment within sixty (60) days of posting on the agenda. 

 
VII.      FRANCHISE AGREEMENT OVERSIGHT PROCEDURES 

 

The powers and duties of the Committee shall be: 
 



 

Page 7 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

A. By appropriate orders and directions of the Auburn or Lewiston City Councils, to take 
action to ensure cable television service franchisee(s) compliance with the terms and 
conditions of their respective present and future franchise agreements with the cities of 
Auburn and Lewiston. 
 
B. To investigate complaints made to the Committee by subscribers and others within the 
community with respect to the access to the facilities of franchisees, the charges made for 
installation, service and use of such facilities, equipment rental and other charges, the quality 
of service provided by franchisees, billing and other matters pertaining to such service and, 
where feasible, to assist in resolving such complaints by appropriate order or otherwise. 
 
C. To advise the City Councils on all matters affecting the provision of cable television service 
to present and future inhabitants of the community and to recommend appropriate changes in 
this chapter and regulations relating to cable television service. 
 
D. To review, evaluate and make recommendations to the Auburn and Lewiston City Councils 
with respect to renewal of existing franchises and to proposals for award of future franchises 
for cable television service to inhabitants and others within the village. 
 
E. To inspect the books, records and other information sources of any franchisee as permitted 
or required by the terms of any franchise agreement now or hereafter entered into by the cities 
of Auburn and Lewiston. 
 
F. To meet periodically with franchisees as provided by franchise agreements to discuss the 
manner in which such agreements are being implemented and such other topics as are of 
interest to the village and franchisees. The Committee may delegate this duty by its rule or 
regulation to a sub-committee or to one or more Members of the Committee. 
 
G. In cooperation with the Auburn and Lewiston Planning Boards, to conduct studies, surveys 
and investigations as necessary with respect to present or future provision of cable television 
service within the community as may be necessary to carry out the general purposes of this 
chapter. 
 
H. To maintain liaison and communication with franchisees, federal and state regulatory 
bodies and public and private agencies, institutions and individuals of local, state or national 
scope whose activities have an impact on the quality or availability of cable television service 
and who can be of assistance to the Committee. 
 
I. To coordinate, assist and unify efforts of private groups, institutions and individuals within 
the community to assist the Committee in the exercise of its powers and the discharge of its 
duties as expressed in these by-laws. 
 
J. To plan, coordinate and make arrangements for broadcast of a civic and informational nature 
and public emergency broadcasting and two-way voice and data transmission by the one or 
both cities as available, utilizing the facilities of present and future franchises in accordance 
with applicable state and federal regulations and the terms and conditions of the respective 
present and future franchise agreements. 
 



 

Page 8 of 8 – Auburn-Lewiston Advisory Cable TV Committee By-Laws 
 

K. To make recommendations with respect to the installation and use of service connections 
and radio-frequency distribution systems in buildings owned by both cities for the provision of 
cable television service to such buildings.  
 
L.  To carry out such other duties as may be assigned from time to time as mutually agreed to 
by the Auburn and Lewiston City Councils. 

 
VIII.     MISCELLANEOUS  

A.  Fiscal Year 
The Corporation shall utilize a fiscal year ending June 30. 
 
B.  Web Page Posting. 
All policies, agendas and meeting notices, along with other Committee business, franchise 
agreement, programming and other related Committee business shall be posted on the Committee’s 
web page. 
 


	1  2016 08 17 Trans  Environ  Agenda
	2  2016 07 20Trans and Environ draft Minutes
	3  A-L Cable TV Advisory Committee  ByLaws FINAL_CLN_ 8 8 16

